
Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
 
 

 

City Council Workshop  
August 22, 2016 

Agenda 
 
                                                                             
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Funding Request for an Agricultural District Study – Doug Greene (30 minutes) 
B. 1863 Pownal Road Zone change from Agricultural to Low Density Rural Residential – Eric Cousens (20 

minutes) 
C. Loring Farm TIF and Home Funds Request – Michael Chammings (30 minutes) 
D. Colonial Ridge PUD - Zoning Map Amendment – Doug Greene (10 minutes) 
E. Executive Session – Discussion regarding an economic development matter pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. 

Section 405 (6)(C).  
 
  
Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive 
session.  Executive sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential 
until they become a matter of public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion 
must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be 
scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The 
only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 
405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 

A. Discussion of personnel issues 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension of expulsion 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real 

property or interests therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosure of the 
information would prejudice the competitive or bargaining position of the body or agency   

D. Labor contracts 
E. Contemplated litigation 
F. Discussion of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public 

to those records is prohibited by statute; 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment 

purposes; consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding 
the content of an examination; and review of examinations with the person examined; and 

H. Consultation between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 
4452, subsection 1, paragraph in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to 
that pending enforcement matter.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  August 22, 2016        
 
Author:  Doug Greene, AICP, RLA  City Planner 
 
 
Subject: Funding Request for an Agricultural District Study 
 
Information: Auburn’s Agricultural Zoning District has been in place since the late 1950’s.  More recently, over the last 2 
years, the City Council has expressed interest in conducting a study to evaluate the current zoning and look at possible 
alternatives on how to regulate the 20,000 plus acre Ag Zone.  One of the most talked about provisions of the Ag Zone is 
the 50% rule, which requires a property owner to show that half of a household’s joint annual income comes from 
agricultural or forestry revenues derived from the property.   
 
The Staff had made preparations to begin the Ag Study two years ago but necessary funding was not available to 
proceed.  This year, $40,000 was proposed in the City Manager’s CIP budget for the study but was not included in the 
final approved budget.  Interest remains high and both the Planning Board and Economic and Community Development 
Committee have requested funds be made available to move forward with the study.  An additional $10,000 is 
committed for this study from the Environmental Funder’s Network.  The study would involve 2 major components; 1) 
completing a land inventory of existing conditions and a property owner survey, and 2) an evaluation of and 
recommendations for Auburn’s Zoning Ordinance, the 2010 Comprehensive Plan, Auburn’s land use and valuation 
policies and the Ag Zone’s future land use potential.  

 
Advantages: Having a complete land inventory and property owner survey will help us understand the current state of 
the land along with the current and future intentions of land owners.  While no specific changes have been made part of 
the study, it is hoped that through a public process, a consensus can be reached on changes that could promote 
agriculture, allow properties to become marketable and to balance conservation and development interests. 
Disadvantages:  The Ag District Zoning regulations have generated strong feeling from many segments of the 
community.  Long time farmers are fiercely supportive of it and many other citizens and groups have become frustrated 
with the restrictions on their land and the length of time it’s taken to begin the study.  This will be a complicated 
process. 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The initial budgetary impact will be to utilize $40,000 in unallocated bond proceeds.  

 
Staff Recommended Action: The Staff recommends the City Council approve the funding for the Ag Study.   

 
Previous Meetings and History: Since the City Council turned down a text amendment request in the Ag Zone in June of 
2014, the Staff has applied for grant funding, technical assistance and periodically come before the City Council to 
discuss the Ag Study and is still seeking funding to proceed with the Study  

 
Attachments:  

1. A revised Ag Study Proposal made to the ECD Committee on July 21, 2016. 
2. A Staff memo on an Ag Study Proposal to the City Council dated June 30, 2015. 
3. An Ag Study memo from Eric Cousens to the City Council dated November 19, 2014. 
4. Zoning map of Auburn. 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic and  

  Community Development 

60 Court Street, Auburn,  Maine 04210  

www.auburnmaine.gov          207.333.6601 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
To: Economic and Community Development Committee 
 
From: Douglas M. Greene, AICP, RLA 
 
Date: July 19, 2016 
 
RE: Ag Study  
 
 
After the 2017 budget was finalized, the staff realized that $40,000 that had been 
requested to be added to the CIP budget for an Ag District Study was not approved.  
The staff continues to hear a high level of interest by the Council and land owners to 
begin a study of Auburn’s Agricultural District.  A proposal is attached that lays out a 
brief history, the current situation and two options on how a study might be 
accomplished.  Option “A” is adapted from a proposal from 2015 and is more involved 
and Option “B” is simpler and less time consuming.   
 
Funding-  Both proposals would utilize the $40,000 and $10,000 that is committed from 
the Environmental Funder’s Network for meeting facilitation and consultants that 
specialize in Agricultural Production and Policy Making.  Here is a preliminary 
breakdown of how the funding might be used: 
 
Meeting Facilitation-   $15,000 
Land Use and Policy Expertise- $25,000 
Additional GIS Mapping Assistance $10,000 
Total Ag Study Budget $50,000 
 
A memo from June 2015 is also attached to provide additional information on the 
purpose and goals of the study.  
 
 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic and  
 Community Development 
60 Court Street  
 Auburn, Maine 04210  
www.auburnmaine.gov             207.333.6601 

 

City of Auburn Agricultural District Study 
Background History-  

• Fall 2013 property owner on South Witham Road files a Zoning Text Amendment 
which is turned down by the City Council 

• June 2014 Council directs Staff to initiate Ag District Study 
• Staff prepares plan strategy, applies for grant and is turned down (2014-15) 
• July 2016 Environmental Funder’s Network-  Commits $10,000 
• Council asked for but did not get $40,000 for Ag District Study in 2017 budget 

Current Situation- 
• Appeal to Economic and Community Development Committee for $40,000 

budget amendment for Ag Study 
• If successful with funding request, consider Option “A” (more detailed and longer) 

or Option “B” (less detail shorter timeframe) 
 
Option “A”- Modeled after original Staff proposal. (June 2015) This is basically a 2 
step process.  Land and Property Owner Inventory, and then Ag Study Process. 

Tasks- Option “A” 
1A. Complete City Land Use Inventory Phase- The GIS Department and 

Planning Department wi l l  de l iver  an exis t ing condit ions map for 
current  land uses (what the land is current ly being used for) and spatial 
analysis maps for characteristics such as: 
• Steep slopes 
• Wetlands, 
• Wildlife Habitat Areas  
• Residential dwellings 
• Active Farms 
• Protected Lands 
• A comparison of aerial photos of Rural Auburn from 1961 to today 

1B. Property Owner List and Inventory 
• GIS map and Excel file of all property owners in the Ag District 
• Initial Land Owner contact, by meetings, mailed survey or interviews 
• Maintain and update property owner data.   

2A. Public Participation Phase- This phase will require outside consultant help 
• Consider creating an Ag Study Steering Committee. (This was a 

recommendation  of the Maine Farmland Trust and American Farmland 
Trust) 

2A. Ag Study Kick off Meeting (Invite list to include) 
• General Public  
• Local Farmers 

Page 1 of 2 
 



• Realtors 
• Land Owners 
• City Council and Mayor 
• Planning Board 
• Steering Committee 
Kick off meeting Speakers (Provide a statewide perspective on Ag Trends) 
• Ag, Conservation and Forestry Rep 
• Maine Farmland Trust and/or American Farmland Trust 
• Smart Growth Maine 
• Other Key Groups (Cultivating Community?) 
• Provide time for public comments 

2B. Ag Plan Process -Based on kick off meeting and Steering Committee input, set 
 up a series of Ag. Study Workshops (Possible topics could include) 

• Current Land Use Regulations- Comp Plan, Zoning and/or City Policies 
• Agriculture, Forestry and Mineral Extraction in Auburn/Maine 
• Land Value/ Assessment/ Future Land Use 
• Smart Growth: A Balanced Approach to City and Country 

 
2C. Draft Options and Alternatives Based on Workshop Input- Include any 

changes to Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 
 
2D. Public Meeting on Draft Changes and Implementation Strategy 
 
2E. Send any amendments to the Planning Board for review and forward 

recommendations to the City Council. 
 
2F. Public Hearing and Final Consideration/Adoption by City Council. 

 
Option “B”- Streamlined Process 

1. Complete Land Use and Property Owner Mapping (Ag District Only) 
2. Hold 2 public meetings; North and South Ag District areas 
3. Continue public meetings, using hired consultants and develop alternatives 

for amendments to Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance based on 
meeting input. 

4. Use public process to select supportable plan changes 
5. Take draft plan through the Planning Board and Council process. 

 
Other Thoughts-  

• Hiring consultants to help with the public process and final study elements and 
products will help avoid a possible public perception that a staff driven study is 
biased in some way.   

• Public information and relations will a very important component of the study. 
• Additional student help may be available from Bates College and University of 

Southern Maine. 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Office of Planning and Development 

60 Court Street  Suite 104  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6600 Voice  (207) 333-6601 Automated  (207) 333-6625 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.org 
      

 

 

 

To:  Mayor LaBonte and City Council 

 

From: Douglas M. Greene, AICP, RLA; City Planner 

 

Date: June 30, 2015 

 

RE: An Update on the Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone Study District 

 

 

Purpose of the Study- 

 

Auburn is planning a study of its 20,000 acre Agricultural and Resource Protection 

(AG/RP) District. The zoning regulations in this area have strongly limited residential 

development in this area for over 50 years. Today, these regulations need to be 

reconsidered due to unintended barriers that limit the potential of agriculture and forest 

resources. The study will examine changes to policies and regulations that can benefit 

the environment, promote agriculture and rural economic development, natural resources 

and downtown for the next 50 years.   

 

Goals of the Study- 

 

The underlying goal of revitalizing our Agricultural and Forestry base is not just about 

farming and forestry.  The ultimate success of the plan will rest on our ability to involve, 

educate and inspire the people of Auburn to not only support farmers and foresters, but to 

incorporate the bounty of the Agricultural District into our lives.  We want the study to 

explore ways for people in our downtown and suburban areas to have increased access to 

local agricultural and forestry products, to bring awar eness  o f  t he  impor t ance  o f  

agriculture into the schools and to our children, and help revitalize downtown Auburn with a 

Farmer's Market that supplies not only fresh, healthy produce, but creates a social setting 

for arts, music and community events.  The Staff has been in discussion with the State's 

Department of Agriculture, Forestry and Conservation and the Maine Farmland Trust to 

explain our situation, seek additional support and resources and to share their knowledge 

and experience in what other areas of Maine are doing to promote agriculture and forestry. 

 

Study Timeline- 

 

In June of 2014, the City Council requested the Planning Staff create a proposal for a study 

of Auburn’s Agricultural and Resource Protection District (AG/RP).  A draft AG/RP study 

strategy and outline was prepared that indicated the work would be done by staff only.  A 



June 30, 2015 

2 

 

suggestion was brought forward by the City Council at its November 24
th

 work session, to 

assist the staff by hiring outside help.   

 

The Staff identified a funding opportunity with the Elmina B. Sewall Foundation and applied 

on January 15
th

 for $67,500 in grant funding to help staff in the Agricultural District Study. 

 Mapping and Data-  $7,500 

 Meeting Facilitation-   $30,000 

 Land Use and Policy Expertise-  $30,000 

 

In early June, the Sewall Foundation notified the City that they were not selected for the 

grant. With that in mind, the staff is now preparing an alternative approach to the Ag District 

Study that will utilize City Staff but still look for opportunities for help with meeting 

facilitation and policy assistance. 

 

Revised Ag Study Implementation Strategy- 

 

1. Initial Steps by Staff-  (Underway) 

A. Land Use Inventory- The GIS Department of the City has 2 interns working on 

comparing 2013 and 1961 aerial photos to determine the changes in how the land 

is being used, and performing spatial analysis on such characteristics as: 

 Existing land uses 

 Steep slopes 

 Wetlands 

 Residential dwellings 

 Wildlife Habitat Areas and other restricted areas.  

. 

A Land Use Inventory Report will be drafted and a property owner list generated.   

 

B. Initial Land Owner contact, meetings or interviews (Underway) 

 Over the course of the last year, a number of rural residents have 

expressed interest in being involved with the study; that list is continually 

being updated. 

 The staff is contacting and visiting with key property owners and discuss 

their current uses and future intentions.  

 

2. Other Early Steps- 

A. Begin meeting with other interest groups. For example, Saint Mary’s Hospital has 

contacted staff to discuss the Ag Study’s possible inclusion of Community 

Gardening and a Mobile Farmer’s Market efforts. 

B. Consider creating an Ag Study Steering Committee.  (This was a recommendation 

of the Maine Farmland Trust and American Farmland Trust) 

 

3. Plan Kick off Meeting  

A. Press releases and outreach. 

B. Invitation to General Public and: 

 Local Farmers 



June 30, 2015 

3 

 

 Realtors 

 Land Owners 

 City Council and Mayor 

 Planning Board 

 

4. Kick off meeting 

A. Invited speakers from Maine Farmland Trust and American Farmland Trust 

B. Smart Growth Maine 

C. Other Key Groups 

D. Provide time for public comments 

 

5. Based on kick off meeting and Steering Committee input, set up a series of monthly Ag. 

Study Workshops.  (Possible topics could include) 

A. Current Land Use Regulations- Comp Plan, Zoning and/or City Policies.   

B. Agriculture, Forestry and Mineral Extraction in Auburn/Maine.  

C. Land Value/ Assessment/ Future Land Use.   

D. Smart Growth: A Balanced Approach to Auburn’s Urban and Rural areas.   

E. Other topics as needed. 

 

6. Draft Options and Alternatives- Include any changes to Comprehensive Plan and Zoning. 

 

7. Public Meeting on Draft Changes and Implementation Strategy.   

 

8. Send any amendments to the Planning Board for review and recommendations to the City 

Council.  

 

9. Public Hearing and Final Consideration/Adoption by City Council. 

 

 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 
“Maine’s City of Opportunity” 

___________________________      ______ 
Office of Planning & Permitting 

60 Court Street  Suite 104  Auburn, ME 04210 

(207) 333-6600 Voice  (207) 333-6601 Automated  (207) 333-6623 Fax 

www.auburnmaine.gov 
      

 

 
 
To:    Honorable Mayor and City Councilors   

 
From: Eric J. Cousens, Deputy Director of Planning and Development 
 
Re: Ag Zone Study 
 
Date: November 19, 2014 

 

I apologize for not being available in person for the workshop on November 24th but can be 
available by phone and I know you are in very good hands with City Planner Doug Greene.  
This workshop item is a follow up from the Council’s directive to review the Agricultural Zone 
Standards in a comprehensive way after Michael and Darlene Reardon organized a petition 
to amend the zoning ordinance to allow flexibility in the location of dwellings on split zoned 
residential/agricultural zoned parcels.  There are a number of changes contemplated in the 
Comprehensive Plan for the City’s Agricultural zone and it would be helpful to have input 
from all affected residents, business people, farmers and other natural resource based users 
on the land as well as some outside experts in agriculture and economic opportunities.  Doug 
has organized and outlined a process that we think will provide a great opportunity to hear 
from a wide range of interests, educate all involved in the discussions on current issues and 
trends and help Staff and the Planning Board provide a well informed set of 
recommendations for the Council in making decisions to change, or not to change the 
policies or ordinances.  We hope that Planning Board members and City Councilors will be 
part of the public discussions from the beginning and can help position Auburn for efficient 
and fiscally responsible growth, preserve vital land resources for long term economic benefits 
as well as take advantage of agriculture, recreational and natural resource based industry 
(forestry, gravel mining, etc) opportunities.  It may seem that our agricultural and downtown 
areas are far apart in distance and on the scale of land uses in Auburn, however, at the Grow 
Smart Maine conference last month John Piotti, President and CEO of Maine Farmland Trust 
highlighted some exciting synergies that can be created between farms and downtown 
economic development and how each can help the other thrive.  We can see that possibility 
here with Four Seasons Market opening in New Auburn and local restaurants featuring local 
meats and produce.   
 
This workshop is the beginning of a discussion and we hope the Council will provide input on 
the study plan and outline and express any concerns or offer any ideas on what is important 
with respect to goals of the discussion.  The Agricultural and Resource Protection Zone has 
been used for much more than just agriculture and has been very effective in accomplishing 
it’s purpose.   
 
Purpose: The purposes of this district are to allow for conservation of natural resources and open 

space land, and to encourage agricultural, forestry, and certain types of recreational uses. It is 



declared to be in the public interest that these areas should be protected and conserved because of 
their natural, aesthetic and scenic value, the need to retain and preserve open space lands, their 
economic contribution to the city, and primarily because these areas are so remote from existing 
centers of development that any added uncontrolled growth could result in an economic burden on 
the city and its inhabitants. This section shall be construed so as to effectuate the purposes outlined 
here and to prevent any attempt to establish uses which are inconsistent with these purposes or any 
attempt to evade the provisions of this division. (Chapter 60, Auburn Ordinance, AG/RP zone purpose) 

 
This study is important for the City of Auburn.  The Ag zone was a very forward thinking tool 
to manage growth and direct it to where it can be efficiently served more than 50 years ago 
under the “Farm and Forest Zone” name at the time.  It was also very effective in reducing 
the tax burden of active farms and allowing large undeveloped pieces of forest land to exist 
free from an escalating tax burden that forced many farms in southern Maine and around the 
country to carve out house lots and slowly reduce their ability to continue with farming as 
they lost land with each sale.  The only reason that the farms in Auburn did not have to 
compete with residential land values is because residential uses were not an option in the Ag 
zone and without that market, the values per acre stayed lower that residential land. That 
reduced value is not necessarily bad for the City because farms and forest lands do not put 
many kids in the school system or add much traffic to our roads and do not require much for 
municipal services.   The tax benefits to farmers may not be as relevant now as they were 
then with State Current Use Tax Programs for Tree Growth and Agriculture but making 
informed choices with an understanding of the cost of serving new development in remote 
areas is as important today as it ever has been.   
 
Staff recommends the following goals be considered during this discussion and we hope that 
the Council will provide input at the workshop if a goal should be removed or any additional 
goals should be added: 
 

1. Grow in a fiscally responsible way – ensure new development service costs don’t grow 
faster than new development tax revenues and maximize the use of existing 
infrastructure before building new infrastructure.   

2. Promote agriculture and support natural resource based industries in appropriate 
locations in a way that supports and enhances our residential and downtown urban 
areas. 

3. Others from Council? 
 
This list will help staff ask the right questions during the public input and study process.   
At a minimum the study will aim to provide a recommendation on the following: 
 

1. Are there areas that should be released from the restrictions of the Agriculture and 
Resource Protection District and that could accommodate some growth without 
burdening existing taxpayers.    

2. Should there be a separate or nuanced zone created for each purpose of the Ag 
zone?  For example protecting flood plains, reserving land for future industrial growth, 
growth control for fiscal or service cost reasons, promotion of agriculture or natural 
resource based industries? 

3. Income requirements for a home accessory to an agricultural use.  Is the 50% of 
household income outdated and is it actually preventing modern farms or agriculture 



from taking root?  Having one person farm with a spouse working off the farm earning 
a steady wage and providing insurance may be necessary if we want to see new 
farms.  How can we make it possible for this to happen without seeing substantial 
residential growth in areas that would be costly to serve. 

4. Flexibility in home locations on split zoned parcels.     
5. The Comprehensive plan recommends a number of changes to zoning district 

boundaries and some residential expansion.  We aim to package those for 
recommendations and consideration.   

6. Are there further changes to the Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Plan that 
could promote the goals of the Council?   

 
For today we ask the Council to provide input on the goals and process presented tonight 
and help staff add or edit the process so that a final version can be presented for a resolve at 
an upcoming meeting.  With the City Manager transition and existing initiatives it may be 
helpful to bring in some outside help with agricultural and cost of community services 
expertise.  As the process moves forward we plan to identify gaps in information and request 
funding in the upcoming budget for consultant services.  Those contracted services may not 
be critical, but would help speed the process, avoid delays on other projects and ensure that 
we (Staff, the Planning Board and the Council) have everything we need to make informed 
recommendations and decisions.  It would also allow us to better assist the Manager over the 
coming months.   
 
Residents, Staff and business people count on the Comprehensive Plan as a document that 
can help them invest time and money with a policy document in place that provides for 
predictability of outcomes.  This discussion will be one of the most important land use 
discussions that current staff and the Council have worked on together.  I am excited that we 
have a lot to gain from it and optimistic that Auburn is better positioned than most 
communities for agricultural growth due to the protections afforded by the existing AG zone.  
This discussion is timely and there is room for improvements that could help promote 
agriculture.  The trick will be to carefully and thoughtfully consider any unintended 
consequences that could hurt Auburn in the future.   
 

Please provide input on the goals and process presented on the 24th and help staff add to or 
edit the process so that a final version can be presented for a resolve at an upcoming 
meeting. 



HO
TE

L MAINE

MAIN

MINOT

PO
WNA

L

RIVER

RI
VE

RS
ID

E

LAKE

WAS
HIN

GT
ON

BR
OAD

CE
NT

ER

TU
RN

ER

SUMMER

HATCH

TR
AP

P

COURT

GARFIELD

OLD
 DAN

VIL
LE

FIC
KE

TT

PERKINS RIDGE

SOPERS MILL

JO
RDAN

 SC
HOOL

MILL

POLAND

PARK

LAKE SHORE

FOSTER

AU
BU

RN

KITTYHAWK

WHITMAN SPRING

WEST AUBURN

SO
UT

H 
WI

TH
AM

MERROW

COOK

HACKETT

JO
HN

SO
N

FLETCHER

WITHAM

MOUNT AUBURN

RODMAN

STEELE

FIFTH

HI
GH

OA
K H

ILL

WATERMAN

HOLBROOK

DA
VIS

THIRD

GOFF

FIELD

VICKERY

DANVILLE CORNER

LEWISTON JUNCTION

MAN
LE

Y

BEECH HILL

ST
AT

IO
N

GI
LL

GAMAGE

MAPLE HILL

PRIDE

PE
NLE

Y C
ORNE

R

STEVENS MILL

HERSEY HILL

SEVENTH

FERN

HOBART

LANE

ALLEN

STONE

WINTER

BEAVER

AN
DR

EW

EA
ST

MA
N

BU
TL

ER
 H

ILL

STETSON

GRACELAWN

QUAIL

TAF
T

WOODBURY

WESTERN
SK

ILL
IN

GS
 C

OR
NE

R

YOUNGS CORNER

HOW
E

TW
IN

WHITNEY

PAUL

UNION

AL
LIE

D

SP
RI

NG

VALVIEW

SHORE

BLACK CAT

CHICOINE

NINTH

MOUNT APATITE

KYLE

JACKSON HILL

HATFIELD

BRIGHTON HILL

BATES

RO
Y

BE
NNE

TT

EX
IT 7

5

POLAND SPRING

VISTA

ROYAL RIVER

BRADMAN

BR
OAD

VIE
W

HIGHLAND

BA
ILE

Y

HARDSCRABBLE

EVERETT

TOWNSEND BROOK

LA
KE

 AU
BU

RN

HARMONS CORNER

ELMWOOD

SMALL

LO
ST

 VA
LL

EY

YACHT CLUB

DILLINGHAM HILL

HARRIS

OLIVE

DEER RIPS

KINGS

TROY

DAWES

JOATMON

PIONITE

NO
RT

HE
RN

MARTINDALE

MONROE

FO
CH

BARK MULCH

AVIATION

MARSTON HILL

CE
DA

RW
OO

D

FAIRVIEW

BLANCHARD

TE
RR

AC
E

HICKORY

JACQUES

CO
LO

NIA
L

CO
NAN

T

JOFFRE

SU
NR

ISE

Portland

BO
UL

DE
R

TOWLE

PUMP STATION

DAVID

PO
ND

 VI
EW

FAIRWAY

WY
MA

N

JE
NN

IFE
R

RUSSELL

FOREST

LITTLEFIELD

BR
ET

TO
N

OWL
DA

MY

LUBEAR

RI
VE

RW
AL

K

SUMMIT

BELGRADE

WILSON HILL

CHURCH

COLBY

CREST

CLEVELAND

TA
YW

OO
D

HEATH

COVE

GAMMON

PINNACLE

BR
EN

TW
OOD

CLOVER

MUSKET

ROYAL

TYLER

CA
RR

IER

MARIAN

ROSE

TALON

CHASSE

RICHARDSON

MIAMI

GARDEN

XIVRAY

TOURMALINE

ENFIELD

CARLTON BR
ICKYA

RD

DUNLAP

BEECH

GARY

EVERGREEN

POINT OF PINE

INFINITI

HORIZON

SU
NS

ET

HARRIMAN

INDUSTRY
AN

DR
EA

CUSHMAN

CARSON

CYR

HATHAWAY

FALCON

PHILOMAR

CHICKADEE

ROCHELLE

MILLER

MAINE

SH
OR

E

TU
RN

ER

City of Auburn Ag Zoning- 2015

Legend
AG - Agriculture and Resource Protection
LDCR - Low Density Country Residential
RR - Low Density Rural Residential

0 0.75 1.5 2.25 30.375
Miles



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
 
Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  August 22, 2016     
 
Author:  Eric Cousens, Deputy Director of Economic and Community Development  
 
 
Subject:  Zoning Map Amendment Request for Pownal Road Area 
 
Information:  The City Manager’s office received a request from two Councilors for consideration to be given to a zone 
change in the area of 1863 Pownal Road and passed that along to the Economic and Community Development 
Department to carry through the review process.  Staff brought the request to the Council Committee on Economic and 
Community Development and the committee directed staff to bring the item to the Planning Board for a 
recommendation to Council as required by ordinance for any zoning amendment.  Staff drafted 4 options for the request 
and the Planning Board considered the item at the August 9th meeting.  After public input and substantial deliberation 
the Planning Board tabled the item.  Staff intends to provide additional information to help the board make a 
recommendation at the September meeting.  The additional information includes the following: 

1. Other options including variances and “No Action Letters” and why we do not recommend those options. 
2. A copy of a deed restriction that was offered by the buyer of the parcel to limit the creation of any new house 

lots.   
3. A 5th zoning boundary change option that limits the zone change to the odd side of the street effectively 

reducing the number of potential future lots as requested by the Board.   
Additional information is available in the staff report and the video of the Planning Board meeting is available at 
http://www.greatfallstv.net/webstream.htm . Staff will be available to discuss the history and tax liens on the parcel 
at the meeting.   
 

Advantages:  See staff report. 
 
Disadvantages: See staff report.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts: See staff report.   

 
Staff Recommended Action:  See staff report.  New option of reducing the impacted area will be supported by staff for 
Planning Board review.   
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: July Council Committee on Economic and Community Development and August 9, 2016 
Planning Board Meeting.   

 
Attachments: 1863 Pownal Road ZC Staff Report  8-9-16, 1863 Pownal Road ZC mapping, Comp Plan RRes Strips 1863 
Pownal Rd.   

http://www.greatfallstv.net/webstream.htm








































dgreene
Callout
1863 Pownal Rd.Currently zoned AGwith 8.9 acres of land

dgreene
Callout
Rural Residential ZoningRequest is to extend this zoning to include 1863 Pownal Road.  

dgreene
Line

dgreene
Line

dgreene
Line

dgreene
Line

dgreene
Line

dgreene
Line





City of Auburn Comprehensive Plan - 2010 Chapter 1: Goals, Policies, & Strategies 

 

Approved 4/19/2011 70 

 

all areas subject to shoreland zoning under state law. It establishes water body setback 

requirements and performance standards, and is being updated to reflect current state 

requirements. 

3. RURAL RESIDENTIAL ROAD STRIPS 

The City has historically zoned narrow strips of land along some rural roads for low density 

residential development.  These strips represent a compromise between the City’s goal of 

limiting residential development in rural areas, and existing conditions along these rural roads.  

As part of the development of the Future Land Use Plan (see Chapter 2), the City conducted a 

comprehensive review of where residential strips should and should not be created based upon 

the following set of criteria.  The considerations outlined below apply sequentially – first to  

identify where strips are appropriate based on current land use patterns, and then to work 

through where residential strips are inappropriate based on a variety of considerations. 

 

Consideration #1 – Established Residential Pattern 

A residential strip may be provided along a rural road where there is an established pattern of 

residential uses along the road.  An established residential pattern means at least 6-8 homes per 

half mile counting both sides of the road.  In general, both sides of a road should have a 

residential strip unless there is a significant reason not to allow residential development based 

on the following considerations. 

 

Consideration #2 – Reserve Area Adjacency 

A residential strip should not be provided along a rural road if the area adjacent to the road is a 

“reserve area” where the objective is to maintain the land as undeveloped to allow for its 

conversion to a different use in the foreseeable future.  There should be some realistic 

expectation that something will occur that will change the desired land use for the area in the 

future. 

 

Consideration #3 – Natural Resource Adjacency 

A residential strip should not be provided along a rural road if the area adjacent to the road has 

significant natural resource value.  Areas with significant natural value include areas that are 

zoned Resource Protection or are high value wetlands, 100 Year floodplains, significant wildlife 

habitats, and areas with steep slopes (>25%). 

 



City of Auburn Comprehensive Plan - 2010 Chapter 1: Goals, Policies, & Strategies 

 

Approved 4/19/2011 71 

 

Consideration #4 – Conservation/Open Space Adjacency 

A residential strip should not be provided along a rural road where the adjacent land is 

protected open space, or where there is a reasonable expectation that the land will be preserved 

as open space in the foreseeable future, and residential development is inconsistent with that 

open space use. 

 

Consideration #5 -- Ability to Provide Public Services 

A residential strip should not be provided along a rural road if residential development will 

tax the City’s ability to provide municipal services as indicated by the following: 

 

 The road is a gravel or dirt road 

 The road is a poorly maintained paved road that will need to be improved to support 

residential development along it 

 

Consideration #6 – Water Quality Protection 

A residential strip should not be provided along rural roads with undeveloped frontage that 

are located in the watershed of Lake Auburn, unless such development will not have an adverse 

impact on the lake’s water quality. 

 

The Future Land Use Plan (see Chapter 2) shows the areas where low density residential 

development is proposed to be allowed along rural roads based on these criteria.  These criteria 

should be used in the future to review the areas designated as residential strips as conditions 

change, or to review property owner-initiated requests for rezoning. 

4. NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICTS 

The City has a number of neighborhood businesses that are located within residential 

neighborhoods.  It is the City’s policy to support the retention and improvement of these 

businesses since they offer a valuable service to the City’s residents.  It is also the City’s policy 

to encourage the owners of these properties to reinvest in maintaining and improving these 

buildings.  To accomplish these objectives, the Future Land Use Plan (see Chapter 2) designates 

these properties as Neighborhood Business Districts.  The standards for these districts allow the 

existing nonresidential use to be maintained and improved, as long as it is compatible with the 

surrounding neighborhood.  The standards also allow for replacing an existing use with a new 

nonresidential use (other than service stations and auto service facilities), as long as it is 

appropriate for the neighborhood.  The primary objective in creating these districts is to 

encourage the retention of these neighborhood businesses.  As long as the property includes 

nonresidential space, whether occupied or not, the property should remain in the 

Neighborhood Business District to allow re-occupancy by an appropriate nonresidential use.  



































































 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:  August 22, 2016       
 
Author:  Doug Greene, City Planner 
 
 
Subject: Colonial Ridge PUD- Zoning Map Amendment 
 
Information: The Planning Board approved an amendment to the Colonial Ridge Planned Unit Development (PUD) at its 
July 12, 2016 meeting.  The amendment changed a condominium style development area to a 15 single family lot style 
development.  During the course of the plan review, the Staff noticed a small area (under 1 acre area) that was zoned 
Industrial.  The industrial area includes the rear portions of lots 8, 9 and a detention/open space area.  The Planning 
Board approved the plan and also initiated a zone change to correct the situation.  The lots affected by the zoning 
conflict have enough residentially zoned space for a home to be built on but the future owner would be prevented from 
having any type of residential use in the rear (Industrially zoned) part of the lots.   
 
The Planning Board took action on this zone change at its August 9th meeting and voted unanimously to forward a 
positive recommendation to the City Council to rezone portions of lots 8, 9 and a detention/open space area from 
Industrial District to Suburban Residential District. The Planning Board considered this zone change to be a corrective 
action.  

 
Advantages: Approving the zone change will allow future home owners to use their entire property in residential uses 
and correct a zoning conflict on the affected properties. 
 
Disadvantages: Having Industrial zoning on the rear of a residential property would limit its use and could cause 
difficulty in obtaining mortgage loans. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: None. 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council move the Zoning Map Amendment forward to a 1st 
reading and public hearing.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: The Auburn Planning Board considered the Colonial Ridge PUD at its July 12th and 
August 9th meetings. 
 

 
Attachments:  

1. Staff report from the August 9, 2016 Planning Board meeting. 
2. Planning Board report on the Colonial Ridge PUD Zoning Map Amendment.  
3. Mapping of the Zoning Map Amendment. 

 
 











 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   August 22, 2016   
 
 

Subject:  Executive Session 
 

Information: Discussion regarding economic development, pursuant to 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6) (C). 
 

Executive Session:  On occasion, the City Council discusses matters which are required or allowed by State law to be considered in executive session.  Executive 
sessions are not open to the public.  The matters that are discussed in executive session are required to be kept confidential until they become a matter of 
public discussion.  In order to go into executive session, a Councilor must make a motion in public.  The motion must be recorded, and 3/5 of the members of 
the Council must vote to go into executive session.  An executive session is not required to be scheduled in advance as an agenda item, although when it is 
known at the time that the agenda is finalized, it will be listed on the agenda. The only topics which may be discussed in executive session are those that fall 
within one of the categories set forth in Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 405(6).  Those applicable to municipal government are: 
 

A. Discussion or consideration of the employment, appointment, assignment, duties, promotion, demotion, compensation, evaluation, disciplining, 
resignation or dismissal of an individual or group of public officials, appointees or employees of the body or agency or the investigation or hearing of charges or 
complaints against a person or persons subject to the following conditions:  

(1) An executive session may be held only if public discussion could be reasonably expected to cause damage to the individual's reputation or the 
individual's right to privacy would be violated; 

(2) Any person charged or investigated must be permitted to be present at an executive session if that person so desires; 
(3) Any person charged or investigated may request in writing that the investigation or hearing of charges or complaints against that person be 

conducted in open session. A request, if made to the agency, must be honored; and  
(4) Any person bringing charges, complaints or allegations of misconduct against the individual under discussion must be permitted to be present. 
This paragraph does not apply to discussion of a budget or budget proposal;  
 
B. Discussion or consideration by a school board of suspension or expulsion of a public school student or a student at a private school, the cost of whose 

education is paid from public funds, as long as:  
(1) The student and legal counsel and, if the student is a minor, the student's parents or legal guardians are permitted to be present at an executive 

session if the student, parents or guardians so desire;  
 
C. Discussion or consideration of the condition, acquisition or the use of real or personal property permanently attached to real property or interests 

therein or disposition of publicly held property or economic development only if premature disclosures of the information would prejudice the competitive or 
bargaining position of the body or agency;  

 
D. Discussion of labor contracts and proposals and meetings between a public agency and its negotiators. The parties must be named before the body or 

agency may go into executive session. Negotiations between the representatives of a public employer and public employees may be open to the public if both 
parties agree to conduct negotiations in open sessions;  

 
E. Consultations between a body or agency and its attorney concerning the legal rights and duties of the body or agency, pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement offers and matters where the duties of the public body's or agency's counsel to the attorney's client pursuant to the code of professional 
responsibility clearly conflict with this subchapter or where premature general public knowledge would clearly place the State, municipality or other public 
agency or person at a substantial disadvantage;  

 
F. Discussions of information contained in records made, maintained or received by a body or agency when access by the general public to those records 

is prohibited by statute; 
 
G. Discussion or approval of the content of examinations administered by a body or agency for licensing, permitting or employment purposes; 

consultation between a body or agency and any entity that provides examination services to that body or agency regarding the content of an examination; and 
review of examinations with the person examined; and  

 
H. Consultations between municipal officers and a code enforcement officer representing the municipality pursuant to Title 30-A, section 4452, 

subsection 1, paragraph C in the prosecution of an enforcement matter pending in District Court when the consultation relates to that pending enforcement 
matter.  
 


	0  Agenda 8-22-2016
	1  Info Sheet Ag Study Request for Funding 7-28-16
	1a  Ag Zone Docs
	3a  Ag Study Materials EDC Committee Meeting 7-21-16
	3b  Ag Study Alternatives Memo 6-30-15
	3c  AG Zone Study For CC Workshop Nov 2014
	3d  2015 Zoning Map

	2  Info Sheet - CC Workshop 1863 Pownal Road 8 22 16
	2A  Councilor Agenda Request - Zoning
	2B  1863 Pownal Road ZC Staff Report  8-9-16
	2C  1863 Pownal Road ZC mapping
	2D  Comp Plan RRes Strips 1863 Pownal Rd
	3  Loring Farm - TIF
	4  Info Sheet - Colonial Ridge
	4a  Colonial Ridge PUD -  ZC  Staff Report
	5  Executive Session Econ Dev



